
 
 
 

Chairperson Kathleen Dafler 
Members:   • Chip Hills • Gary Kirchhofer • Christopher Marshall • Tony Perry 

 

 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

Thursday, August 22, 2024, 7:30 PM 
CITY HALL 

301 SYCAMORE STREET, BROOKVILLE, OHIO 45309 
(937) 833-2135 

www.brookvilleohio.com  
 

Agenda 
 

    
I. Opening  

a. Call to Order 
       

b. Pledge of Allegiance 
       

c. Roll Call 
      
    
II. Adoption of Agenda 
    
III. Approval of Minutes  

a. Approval of Minutes from February 29, 2024 
      
    
IV. Application for Zoning Variance - AmVets Post 1789 
    
V. Reports  

a. Law Director 
      
    
VI. Old Business 
    
VII. New Business 
    
VIII. Adjournment 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.brookvilleohio.com/


 
 
 

Chairperson Kathleen Dafler 
Members:   • Chip Hills • Gary Kirchhofer • Christopher Marshall • Tony Perry 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of Zoning Appeals 1 of 5 February 29, 2024

Brookville Board of Zoning Appeals
Regular Meeting

February 29, 2024

The Regular Meeting of the Brookville Board of Zoning Appeals was called to order by 
Chairperson Dafler at 7:30 p.m. on February 29, 2024. The meeting was held in the City Council 
Chambers and virtually using Webex. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Members Dafler, 
Kirchofer and Marshall; Law Director Stephan, Manager Kuntz and Clerk Duncan were present. 

Roll call by Clerk Duncan. 

Motion by Kirchofer, second by Marshall to adopt the Agenda as presented. All yeas, motion 
carried. 

Clerk Duncan announced this hearing is to consider Variance #24-01 for a 50’ x 80’ proposed 
storage building at 645 S. Wolf Creek Street. A notice of this hearing was published in the 
February 21 and February 28 editions of the Register Herald. Notices were sent to property 
owners within 200 feet of the property as required by Chapter 1111 of the Code of Ordinances. 
Clerk Duncan advised the city office did not receive any inquiries regarding this hearing. 

Clerk Duncan asked if any Member needs to abstain from participating in this hearing?

No one indicated the need to abstain. 

Clerk Duncan administered the Oath of Witness to Kyle O. Volk of 345 S. Wolf Creek Street, 
Brookville, Ohio 45309 and Cheri Simon of 12589 Airhill Road, Brookville, Ohio 45309.

Law Director Stephan reported Kyle Volk has filed an application for zoning variance. A copy 
of the application for zoning variance is attached. The variance request is to construct a 50’ X 
80’ storage building (4,000 square feet) on a 2.006-acre lot. The lot has 150’ of frontage and is 
358’ deep. The proposed building would be located in the rear yard behind their existing single-
family home. The size of this proposed storage building exceeds the maximum size for a 
detached garage of 768 square feet as specified in Section 1157.03 of the Code of Ordinances. 
Chapter 1111 of the Code of Ordinances sets forth procedures for appeals and variances by the 
Board of Zoning Appeals. Under Section 1111.06(h), the Board of Zoning Appeals may grant a 
variance to increase the maximum gross floor area of any use so limited by the applicable 
regulations but generally not more than 25 percent. The property abuts Perry Township on its 
south border, and there are a number of storage buildings or barns on the properties in the 
township immediately south of this property on Wolf Creek Pike. Law Director Stephan advised 
a notice of this Public Hearing was mailed to the adjoining property owners and published in the 
Register Herald. Law Director Stephan advised the applicant presented a letter from adjoining 
property owner Dan Rice, of 12269 S. Wolf Creek Street, dated February 28, 2024, which reads 
as follows: My name is Dan Rice, I live at 12269 S. Wolf Creek Street. I have no issues with 
Kyle building whatever size building he would like on his property. Any questions, please give 
me a call at 937-603-2493. The letter was signed by Dan Rice. Law Director Stephan stated Mr. 
Rice’s property is in Perry Township, immediately south of Mr. Volk’s property. 



Board of Zoning Appeals 2 of 5 February 29, 2024

Mr. Kyle Volk, of 645 S. Wolf Creek Street, stated his parents built the house when his dad left 
Korea, making it a legacy to him. When his parents passed away, he inherited the house and 
fifty years of contents, which are emotionally hard to get rid of and he does not want to be 
rushed. Mr. Volk stated he and his wife have been married for 30 years, and own a property in 
Englewood, along with all of the items they have accumulated over the years. Mr. Volk stated 
they need a safe place to put these items as well. Mr. Volk stated his in-laws are also in poor 
health, and have a shopping addiction, so they have a lot of accumulated items to deal with. Mr. 
Volk stated he also has lawn equipment and a camper that he would like to get out of the 
elements. The reason he is asking for this variance to build a larger building is to store the 
camper, his lawn equipment and all of these items accumulated from various sources. Mr. Volk 
stated they have also been caretakers of a neighboring property in exchange for storage. That 
property has been sold and they need to move their stored items. 

Chairperson Dafler asked Mr. Volk if his lawn equipment is part of a business?

Mr. Volk replied it is his personal lawn equipment and other items purchased to clear the 
property after the tornado. Mr. Volk stated he also has a lot of woodworking equipment and 
would like to have a workshop.  

Member Marshall commented that the arial photo looks like there was a structure there in the 
past.

Mr. Volk replied that is actually a garden.

Member Kirchofer asked Mr. Volk if he knows the size of the neighbor’s buildings for 
comparison. 

Mr. Volk replied one of the buildings is 40’ x 60’. He estimated the other building to be 30’ x 
50’. Mr. Volk stated he would like to build a 50’ x 75’ building, If it becomes cost prohibitive 
he will downsize. 

Member Kirchofer inquired whether it will be a steel building?

Mr. Volk replied it will be a steel building. 
  
Chairperson Dafler stated the application shows a proposed 50’ x 80’ building. 

Mr. Volk replied he misspoke, the proposed building is 50’ x 80’, not 50’ x 75’.

Cheri Simon, of 12589 Airhill Road, stated she came to speak in favor of Mr. Volk’s proposed 
storage building. They recently purchased the property north of Mr. Volk at 12359 Wolf Creek 
Street. Mrs. Simon stated she grew up on this property and is a cousin of Mr. Volk. She and her 
husband are in the process of cleaning up the property after years of neglect. They are in favor 
of Mr. Volk’s proposed storage building so that everything on his property, which adjoins hers, 
can be cleaned up and stored out of site. 



Board of Zoning Appeals 3 of 5 February 29, 2024

Member Kirchofer asked what is the square footage of the house on the property?

Mr. Volk estimated it to be 2,400 square feet. 

Law Director Stephan stated if there are no more questions for the witnesses the Public Hearing 
can be closed. 

Chairperson Dafler closed the Public Hearing. 

Law Director Stephan stated the first standard to meet is Section 1111.05 (1) Because of the 
particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the specific property 
involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result, as distinguished from a mere 
inconvenience if the strict letter of the regulations were to be carried out. Law Director Stephan 
stated we are looking at the specific conditions of this lot and whether it is a particular hardship 
on the owner to grant this variance based on conditions of the area. Law Director Stephan noted 
this is a 2.006-acre lot, with township property to the south of similar sizes and the property 
bordering to the north is Mrs. Simon’s property. Law Director Stephan stated the Board of 
Zoning Appeals Members need to look at the size of the lot and the conditions in the area under 
that statement. 

Member Marshall stated with the proposed building at its maximum width, there is 35’ in each 
direction given the frontage, so there would be a good bit of area around it. 

Member Kirchofer stated the proposed building fits well on the site. 

Chairperson Dafler agreed in looking at it, there is no reason for concern other than it does not 
meet the variance that has been set.

Member Kirchofer commented that the proposed building site is well back on the lot, not near 
the road frontage. 

Chairperson Dafler inquired if it would be behind the house?

Mr. Volk indicated that is correct. 

Law Director Stephan read Section 1111.05 (2) The conditions upon which an application for a 
variance is based are unique to the property for which the variance is sought, and are not 
applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification. Law Director 
Stephan stated that goes back to the size of the lot and the Members view of that standard for 
the area. 

Member Kirchofer stated this is not any different than what similar houses in the area have. 

Member Marshall agreed and commented we have the approval of the neighbors to the north 
and the south. 



Board of Zoning Appeals 4 of 5 February 29, 2024

Law Director Stephan read Section 1111.05 (3) The purpose of the variance is not based 
exclusively upon a desire to increase financial gain.

Chairperson Dafler commented based on the information they were given this is not for financial 
gain. The purpose is to clean up the property and provide storage. 

Law Director Stephan read Section 1111.05 (4) The alleged difficulty or hardship is caused by 
this Ordinance and has not been created by any person presently having an interest in the 
property. 

Chairperson Dafler stated she does not see a problem with that. 

Member Kirchofer and Member Marshall agreed. 

Law Director Stephan read Section 1111.05 (5) The granting of the variance will not be 
detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other property or improvements in the 
neighborhood in which the property is located.

Member Kirchofer stated he cannot see anyone saying it would lower their property value to 
have that large building there. 

Member Dafler stated the proposed building will cleanup and improve the area. 

Law Director Stephan read Section 1111.05 (6) The proposed variance will not impair an 
adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, or substantially increase the congestion of 
the public streets, or increase the damage of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially 
diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.

Chairperson Dafler stated the proposed building would not block any light. 

Law Director Stephan read Section 1111.05 (7) The Zoning Board of Appeals may impose such 
conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a variance as may be necessary to 
comply with the standards established in this section and the objectives of this Ordinance.

Member Marshall stated this is a big lot. He sees no reason to place any restrictions. 

Chairperson Dafler agreed, stating she sees no conditions that need to be placed on this 
application. 

Law Director Stephan suggested a condition requiring all outside storage be ceased. 

Motion by Marshall, second by Kirchofer to grant Variance Application #24-01 for Kyle 
Volk to construct a 50’ x 80’ metal storage building at 645 S. Wolf Creek Street, on the condition 
that all outside storage be ceased. All yeas, motion carried. 



Board of Zoning Appeals 5 of 5 February 29, 2024

Motion by Marshall, second by Kirchofer to adjourn. All yeas, motion carried. 

________________________________                                _____________________________
Kimberly Duncan, Clerk Kathleen Dafler, Chairperson


















	I. Opening
	a. Call to Order
	b. Pledge of Allegiance
	c. Roll Call

	II. Adoption of Agenda
	III. Approval of Minutes
	a. Approval of Minutes from February 29, 2024
	BZA 02292024


	IV. Application for Zoning Variance -  AmVets Post 1789
	V. Reports
	a. Law Director
	Memorandum to BZA-AMVETS variance application


	VI. Old Business
	VII. New Business
	VIII. Adjournment

